Request For Proposal (RFP)

Appointment of a Transaction Advisor for the "Formation of Joint Venture Company" in India with a Central Public Sector Enterprise (CPSE) for Coal to Chemicals business

RFP Ref no.: BHEL/AA/CTM/JV/C2C/TA dt. 4^{th} February 2023

Bid-submission date: 14th February 2023



Corporate Technology Management
BHARAT HEAVY ELECTRICALS LIMITED
New Delhi, India



Contents

1	INV	INVITATION FOR BID	
2	sco	PE OF WORK & DELIVERABLES	6
	2.1	Definitions	6
	2.2	CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND THE CONTEXT	
	2.3	SCOPE OF WORK & DELIVERABLES	
	2.3.		
	2.3	•	
	2.3	, ,	
3		LUATION OF BIDS	
3	3.1	Pre-Qualification criteria	
	3.1 3.1.		
	3.1.		
4	GEN	ERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	
	4.1	REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL DOCUMENT (RFP)	
	4.2	AMENDMENT OF RFP DOCUMENT	
	4.3	LANGUAGE	
	4.4	LEGIBLE AND CORRECT ENTRIES	
	4.5	BID CURRENCIES	
	4.6	FOREIGN CURRENCY CONVERSION RATES	
	4.7	CONTRACT	
	4.8	AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY	
	4.9	WORK TIMINGS	
	4.10	ENGAGEMENT OF EXPERTS	
	4.11	RIGHTS OF BHEL	
	4.12	INTEGRITY PACT (IP)	
	4.13	CORRUPT OR FRAUDULENT PRACTICES	
	4.14	INTEGRITY COMMITMENT, PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTRACT AND PUNITIVE ACTION	
	4.15	NOT BANNED / HOLIDAY LISTED / BLACKLISTED	
	4.16	CONFLICT OF INTEREST	
	4.17	FORCE MAJEURE	
	4.18	CONCILIATION & ARBITRATION	
	4.19	APPLICABLE LAW & JURISDICTION OF THE COURT	
	4.20	COMPLIANCE TO REGULATIONS AND BYE-LAWS	
	4.21	ACCIDENTS/ DAMAGES/ CLAIMS LIABILITIES	
	4.22	SAFETY AND STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS	
	4.23	LIABILITIES	
	4.24	GUARANTEES	
	4.25	PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY	
	4.26	CHANGE IN CHARACTER OF THE BIDDER	
	4.27	Non-Disclosure Agreement	
	4.28	USE OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, SPECIFICATIONS, DESIGN	
	4.29	DOCUMENTS/ REPORTS/ DELIVERABLES	
	4.30	RIGHT TO IMPLEMENTATION	_
	4.31	MODIFICATION	_
	4.32	SUB-CONTRACTING AND ASSIGNMENT	
	4.33	OFFICE AT SITE	
	4.34	REGISTRATION	23



5	SPE	CIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	24
	5.1	CLARIFICATIONS	24
	5.2	SIGNING OF THE BIDS	
	5.3	SUBMISSION OF BIDS	24
	5.4	DUE DATE	25
	5.5	ZERO DEVIATION CLAUSE	25
	5.6	REJECTION OF THE BIDS	25
	5.7	ORDER OF PRECEDENCE	26
	5.8	OPENING OF BIDS	26
	5.9	OPENING OF PRICE BIDS	26
	5.10	ROUNDING-OFF	27
	5.11	EVALUATION	27
	5.12	PRICE DISCREPANCY	27
	5.13	VALIDITY OF BID	27
	5.14	AWARD OF CONTRACT	27
	5.15	CONTRACT PERIOD	27
	5.16	TRAVEL EXPENSES	28
	5.17	SECURITY DEPOSIT (SD)	28
	5.18	GLOBAL RESOURCE SHARING	29
	5.19	PRICE ESCALATION	29
	5.20	PRICE REDUCTION CLAUSE (PRC)	29
	5.21	Taxes & duties	29
	5.22	VARIATION IN TAXES & DUTIES	30
	5.23	GENERAL	30
	5.24	CHECKLIST	31
	5.25	TERMS OF PAYMENT	31



1 INVITATION FOR BID

Dear Sir/Madam,

Sub: Appointment of a Transaction Advisor (TA) for the "Formation of Joint Venture Company" in India with a Central Public Sector Enterprise (CPSE) for Coal to Chemicals business

Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited (BHEL) is one of India's largest engineering and manufacturing enterprises in the energy and infrastructure sectors. BHEL manufactures a wide range of products and systems and offers services for the core sectors of the economy viz. power, transmission, transportation, renewables, water, defence & aerospace, oil & gas, and industry.

BHEL is exploring partnership with a Central Public Sector Enterprise for establishing a joint venture for Coal to Chemicals business. This project could result in production of raw material for various high-end chemicals, which would result in self-reliance and is therefore in line with the 'AatmaNirbhar Bharat Abhiyaan' of Govt. of India. The probable areas/segments for collaboration have been detailed further in this document. In line with this, BHEL intends to appoint a Transaction Advisory firm with a proven track record and requisite competence.

BHEL hereby invites bids from reputed firms registered in India for the subject work under a two-part bid system based on terms and conditions specified in this Request for Proposal (RFP) document.

Following salient points relevant to the RFP may please be noted:

No.	BHEL/AA/CTM/JV/C2C/TA dt. 4 th February 2023	
Name of Work	Appointment of a Transaction Advisor for the	
	"Formation of Joint Venture Company" in India with a	
	Central Public Sector Enterprise for Coal to Chemicals	
	business	
Document Fee	NIL	
EMD money deposit	NIL	
Availability of RFP	https://www.bhel.com	
document	https://eprocure.gov.in/	
	henceforth referred as 'Tender Portal'	
Submission for	8 th February 2023 1100 hrs IST	
suggestion/ query		
Due date for submission	On or before 14 th February 2023 1500 hrs IST	
Date & time of opening	14 th February 2023 15:30 hrs IST at BHEL House, Siri Fort,	
of Part-A -unpriced Bid	New Delhi or, as informed on tender portal	
	Name of Work Document Fee EMD money deposit Availability of RFP document Submission for suggestion/ query Due date for submission Date & time of opening	



9	Date & time of opening	Date and time will be intimated to techno-commercially	
	of Part-B- Price bid	acceptable bidders in due course.	
10	Contact person	Tarsem Kumar, Manager (Corp. Technology Management);	
		Tel: +91 11 66337294; email: tarsem@bhel.in	
		Devesh Kumar Singh, AGM (Corp. Technology Management)	
		Tel: +91 11 6633 7377; email: devesh@bhel.in	

This Invitation for bid is an integral and inseparable part of the enclosed document.

Tarsem Kumar Manager (Corp. Technology Management)



2 SCOPE OF WORK & DELIVERABLES

2.1 Definitions

The following expressions hereunder and elsewhere, used in this RFP, unless repugnant to the subject or context thereof, shall have the following meanings hereunder respectively assigned to them.

- a. "BHEL" shall mean Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited.
- b. "RFP" means the Request for Proposal being sent by BHEL including all Clarification/ Addendum/ Corrigendum.
- c. "Bidder/s" means any entity or person who expresses interest and submits the bid to provide the services to BHEL for works defined in this RFP.
- d. "Contract" means the agreement signed between BHEL and the successful bidder.
- e. "Successful/selected bidder", means any entity finalized to provide the services to BHEL under the contract.
- f. 'Consulting firm' means the Transaction advisory firm which expresses interest and submits the bid to provide the services to BHEL for works defined in this RFP.
- g. LOI", "Letter of Intent", "WO", "Work Order" refers to order placed on the selected bidder for performing various activities outlined in this RFP.
- h. "Zero date" means the date of commencement of the contract.
- i. "Day" means a day of 24 hours from midnight to midnight irrespective of the number of hours worked on that day.
- j. "Government" means the Government of India unless specified otherwise.
- k. "Applicable Law" shall mean the Indian law both substantive and procedural.
- I. "Bid" means the Technical & Commercial bid and, Price bid.
- m. "Project" shall mean the proposed project of the JVC for coal to 2000 TPD Ammonium Nitrate
- n. "Similar work" is defined as "an engagement for formation of Joint venture/Merger/Acquisition in technology intensive segments for companies engaged in at least one of the areas of energy, industrials, and/or utilities¹." An engagement in similar works shall mean consulting for core work undertaken in that sector. If the engagement includes only support work or facilitating only one part of the deal, then it would not be considered.
- o. "Firm"- includes corporation, limited liability company (LLC), or partnership- that provides professional services which are registered under Indian law

¹ Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS) 2018, S&P Global, MSCI https://bit.ly/20nXK52



2.2 Corporate overview and the context

BHEL is one of India's largest engineering and manufacturing enterprises in the energy and infrastructure sectors. With a widespread network of 16 manufacturing plants, 2 repair units, 4 regional offices, 8 service centres, 3 active joint ventures, 15 regional marketing centres, 3 overseas offices and more than 150 project sites across India and abroad, BHEL manufactures a wide range of products, systems & services for the core sectors of the economy viz. power, transmission, transportation, renewables, water, defence & aerospace, oil & gas, and industry. Experience of over five decades, scale and depth of its operations, a strong manufacturing base, competent manpower, innovation ecosystem, diverse product mix and focus on sustainable business solutions are BHEL's notable strengths.

The company is transforming itself by strengthening its leadership in the core business by adding new offerings, while simultaneously sustaining growth through diversification. As a result, BHEL continues to focus on enhancing its business in solar, transportation, transmission, defence, aerospace, water, and other new areas. To lay the foundation for sustainable growth in the future, BHEL is looking forward to significantly augment its business from new opportunities for a balanced portfolio.

BHEL is a leading player in providing equipment/ solutions dealing with raw material as coal for the last six decades. As a part of its diversification strategies, BHEL has been working on development of technologies for producing chemicals using in-house developed technology. BHEL has been showcasing this technological prowess to various stakeholders and has now decided to explore partnership with a Central Public Sector Enterprise for coal gasification related chemical production project, utilising BHEL's technology.

Thus, to harness the business opportunities in coal to chemical business, BHEL aims to form a joint venture with a CPSE under *Aatmanirbhar Bharat*. Leveraging manufacturing and engineering strength and long-standing experience of BHEL in supplying equipment/ solutions dealing with raw material as coal, and support of the partnering CPSE, the JV has the potential to establish a pioneering Coal to Chemical project in India.

Annual Report 2021-22 of BHEL (available at <u>www.bhel.com</u>) may be referred to know more about the company including its performance and strategy.



2.3 Scope of work & deliverables

2.3.1 Objective

BHEL has identified a suitable partner to harness the business opportunities in coal to chemical business through formation of a joint venture with a CPSE as part of national strategy of Aatmanirbhar Bharat. Key attributes of the project are:

- 1. The proposed JV will set up a coal to 2000 TPD Ammonium Nitrate Project at an identified location in India.
- 2. BHEL will be responsible for supply of equipment/ implementing its in-house developed technology for the Project.
- 3. BHEL will not transfer any business or novate any contracts to the JV
- 4. Identified partner will contribute resources like organizing for necessary project inputs such as land, coal, water, etc. as well as clearances, offtake of output against mutually decided considerations

The details in the following sections capture the specific requirements of the scope of work. However, these requirements shall not be the limiting factor to meet the objective. The consulting firm will be responsible for all the activities as required and not limited to those detailed below:

2.3.2 Scope of work

The broad scope of the Transaction Advisor is to assist BHEL in the formation of a Joint Venture Company (in India) as per above brief. The activities of the Transaction Advisor shall encompass, but not be restricted to, the activities listed below. The intent of the scope of work is to provide an indication only and the advisor is expected to provide complete services as generally understood by the industry.

The Transaction Advisor shall lead the overall exercise in association with the other advisors (if required). The scope is as follows:

- I. Review of Business Plan/ Pre-Feasibility Report for the Project (to be provided by BHEL)
- II. Prepare the Financial model (*including Capex plan & proposed investment*) with sensitivity analysis and risk analysis & its mitigation for the Project
- III. Advise on proposed structure of Joint Venture including terms of engagement, extant of BHEL's role in supply of equipment, resource evaluation, expected pricing of inputs and offtake (between JVC and JV Partner), valuation of assets and determination of lease rentals, debt equity proportion, financing mode of debt & currency denomination etc., accounting and tax implication & its



- treatment (direct tax and indirect tax) including compliance on both the stakeholders (BHEL & JVC), regulatory guidelines etc.
- IV. Assistance in negotiation and finalization of definitive documents/ agreements (JV Agreement, Offtake agreement, AoA, MoA etc.)
- V. Assistance in presentations to the BHEL Board of Directors and its Sub-Committees. Also assist BHEL in preparation of documentation for obtaining various approvals from Indian Government/Government Authorities and other agencies.
- VI. Coordination of diligence activities with the prospective partner and with other advisors (if any), as required for documentation and closing of proposed transaction
- VII. To provide any other analytical, document related and transactional support required for successful completion of JV formation.

The above scope of work is illustrative and may vary depending on the nature of transaction and negotiations/ discussions with the proposed Partner. At each stage, a detailed document of outcomes will be prepared and submitted for buy-in of the top management.

BHEL reserves the right to avail the services of the "successful/ selected bidder" for additional work (not covered in the above scope of work), if any, related to the JV formation. The bidders shall submit per diem rate for additional work (if any). The rate shall be valid for the duration of the assignment.

Other advisors (if any)

BHEL may appoint other advisors (if required) in connection with formation of JV Company. BHEL shall appoint all such external advisors on its own. The selected firms shall be coordinating with such advisors also. The Transaction Advisor is to ensure full compliance as sole coordinating agency and completion of its work/ deliverables in time. Every advisor appointed by BHEL shall however be responsible for its own deliverables.

Final report

At the end of the assignment, once the JV is formed, a comprehensive final report along with soft copies covering recommendations, business plans, all aspects of JV formation, and other crucial aspects to be submitted for final acceptance by BHEL and closure of the assignment.



2.3.3 Deliverables

On the basis of preceding sections, the consulting firm is required to deliver the expected set of deliverables (in the form of MS Word document, PowerPoint presentations, Excel model and/or other formats as required) as per the mutually agreed timelines.

SI. No	Key submissions	Time elapsed
		(week)
	Zero date	T (date)
2.3.2	Review of Business Plan	T+4 wk
1&11	Prepare the Financial model (including Capex plan &	
	proposed investment) with sensitivity analysis	
2.3.2	Proposed structure of Joint Venture including terms of	T+10 wk
Ш	engagement, extant of BHEL's role in supply of	
	equipment, resource evaluation, expected pricing of	
	inputs and offtake (between JVC and JV Partner),	
	valuation of assets and determination of lease rentals,	
	debt equity proportion, financing mode of debt &	
	currency denomination etc., accounting and tax	
	implication & its treatment (direct tax and indirect tax)	
	including compliance on both the stakeholders (BHEL &	
	JVC), regulatory guidelines etc.	
2.3.2	Assistance in negotiation and finalization of definitive	T+16 wk
IV	documents/ agreements (JV Agreement, Offtake	
	Agreement, AoA, MoA etc.)	
2.3.2	Assistance in presentations to the BHEL Board of	T+24 wk
V	Directors and its Sub-Committees. Also assist BHEL in	
	preparation of documentation for obtaining various	
	approvals from Indian Government/Government	
	Authorities and other agencies.	
2.3.2	Coordination of diligence activities with the prospective	Throughout
VI&VII	partner and with other advisors (technical, legal), as	the
	required for documentation and closing of proposed	assignment
	transaction	
	To provide any other analytical, document related and	
	transactional support required for successful completion	
	of JV formation.	

The above assignment is to be completed within the specified timeline of 24 weeks.



The consulting firm has to ensure that the deliverables cover the entire scope of work in totality to achieve the overall objective of the exercise. Subsequent additions to deliverables may be made by BHEL whenever required.

3 EVALUATION OF BIDS

3.1 Pre-Qualification criteria

The bidder must meet all the following pre-qualification criteria:

- a) The bidder should be a professional consulting firm or an investment banker or a merchant banker or a financial institution or a bank registered in India having experience of at least five years in providing advisory services for Merger & Acquisition activities, and Joint ventures.
- b) The bidder should have advised, handled, and completed a minimum of five deals with direct experience as TA in "Similar works" in India during the period from 1st February, 2016 to 31st December, 2022. Out of these five, at least three should be from different entities (clients of bidder) having turnover equal to or more than Rs. 7500 Crores during the year of award of such work-orders. Further, out of these five deals, at least one deal should be for an Indian CPSE.

Documents to be submitted:

- Copy of Work Order/completion certificate duly certified by the Authorized Signatory of the bidder on letter head which will be subjected to verification by BHEL
- ii. Profit & Loss statement and Balance sheet of client
- iii. Format to be filled as per Annexure 8
- c) Bidder shall provide a list of team members who will be driving this project till completion of the contract. The team, mandatorily constituting full-time employees shall include minimum, i) One Lead Partner/ Director/ equivalent, who will be designated as Team Leader; ii) Two consultants (full time); Minimum experience required of the team is as under:

Partners/ Director/	Minimum 15 (fifteen) years of experience including 7 (seven) years
equivalent	in similar works
Consultant	Minimum 5 (five) years including 2 (two) years in similar works



CVs of all the Team Members proposed to be deployed for this project as per **Annexure-9**, duly certified by Authorized Signatory to be attached. However, consulting firm may deploy more resources as per the requirement of the project.

- i. No relaxation shall be accepted with regards to pre-qualification criteria.
- ii. The scope of the work is indivisible and shall be awarded to a single successful bidder. Consortium bidding is not allowed. However, in case, the consulting firm requires the support of another consultant/ agency, for undertaking part of work, viz. market research, etc., the same would be acceptable with prior approval of BHEL based on the merit of that consultant/ agency. However, performance and cost of the subject assignment will be the sole responsibility of the consulting firm submitting the bid.
- iii. Only completed works shall be considered as consulting engagements.
- iv. If one or more consultants have worked on the same project, these will be considered as separate for the individual consultants.
- v. The on-site team will consist of a minimum 1 Team leader and two consultants throughout the period of the assignment. These resources will be fully dedicated to BHEL only and will work out of any offices of BHEL located in Delhi-NCR till completion of the project in all aspects.
- vi. Bidder shall submit the CVs of all the team members proposed to be deployed for this project (Annexure-9)
- vii. The team members considered for claiming experience under evaluation criteria, and to be deployed for this project should be full-time employees of the consulting firm.
- viii. At least one partner "Lead Partner" should lead this exercise and should spend significant time (at least once a week) with BHEL along with the consulting firm team on this project & should be available for BHEL on need basis.
- ix. The team proposed to be deployed shall remain unchanged, unless under unavoidable circumstances. In such a situation, whether during the contract execution period or during the bidding process, the change will only be permitted with the prior written consent of BHEL, based on credentials of new members furnished. The new member/s proposed to be deployed shall also meet the minimum experience as defined above.
- x. BHEL reserves the right to seek changes in the team during the course of the assignment.

3.1.1 Price Bid evaluation

Price bids shall be opened only for techno commercially qualified bidders and intimation for price bid opening shall be sent later to such techno-commercially qualified bidders only.

Further, such bidders will be evaluated on lowest cost, on the basis of "Total cost to BHEL". Rate quoted shall be firm and bid with price variation clause will be rejected.



After the identification of the successful bidder, BHEL will follow the internal procedure for necessary approvals and thereafter proceed with notification of award of the contract.

3.1.2 Reverse Auction

Reverse Auction for this RFP will not be conducted.



4 GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

4.1 Request for Proposal document (RFP)

The complete RFP document has been uploaded on the tender portal. The bidder is expected to download and examine the complete RFP document, including all instructions, specifications, conditions, scope and other requirements given in the document. The RFP document together with all its attachments thereto shall be considered to be read, understood and accepted by the bidders as one document. All corrigenda, addenda, amendments, time extensions, clarifications, etc. to the RFP will be hosted on tender portal only. Bidders should regularly visit this portal to keep themselves updated.

4.2 Amendment of RFP document

At any time prior to the bid submission date, BHEL may, for any reason, whether at its own initiative or in response to a clarification requested by a prospective bidder, modify the RFP Document and host such Clarification/ Addendum/ Corrigendum on the tender portal as deemed necessary. Bidders have to take into account all such Clarification/ Addendum/ Corrigendum before submitting their bid.

4.3 Language

All correspondence and documents relating to the bid exchanged between the bidder and BHEL shall be in the English language, except that any printed literature may be allowed in another language, provided it is accompanied by an English translation which shall be used for the purpose of bid interpretation. The bidder shall quote the rates in English language and international numerals.

4.4 Legible and correct entries

All entries in the RFP shall either be typed or written legibly in ink. The bid should be free from correction, overwriting, correction fluid, etc. Any interlineation, cutting, erasure or, overwriting shall be valid only if they are attested under full signature/s of person/s signing the bid, otherwise the bid shall be liable for rejection.

4.5 Bid currencies

Bidders shall submit their price bid, Part-B only in Indian Rupees.

4.6 Foreign currency conversion rates

In case turnover and/or any other credentials are in foreign currencies, the same will be converted to INR based on TT Selling Rate of SBI prevailing on the date of opening



of Part-A of bid. In case of the day being a bank holiday, then rate on previous bank (SBI) working day shall be considered.

4.7 Contract

The terms and conditions of the RFP document and LOI / WO placed shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties hereto. Contract agreement as specified by BHEL needs to be executed upon acceptance of LOI / WO. Until a formal contract is signed, the Work Order and acceptance of the same will constitute a binding contract.

4.8 Authorized signatory

The selected bidder shall submit at the time of signing the contract, authorization from Proprietor/ Country Head / Board (certified copy of Board resolution, authenticated by Company Secretary), authorizing an official or officials of the company to discuss, sign agreements/contracts with BHEL, raise invoice and accept payments and also to correspond.

4.9 Work timings

The selected bidder and the team deployed for this assignment shall consider normal working hours of BHEL (0900-1730 hrs at Delhi NCR; 0800-1630 hrs, or as applicable at other manufacturing locations) while planning their resources and performance commitments.

4.10 Engagement of experts

If need be, BHEL may seek expert opinion for validation of recommendations or any other work under the subject scope by the third party at any time.

4.11 Rights of BHEL

BHEL reserves the following rights in respect of this contract during the original contract period or its extensions if any.

To terminate the contract or withdraw a portion of work and get it done through other consulting firms, the consulting firm shall pay the complete/balance/excess cost to be incurred for the completion of the contract at the risk and cost of the contractor after 14 days' notice by BHEL in any of the following cases:

- Poor progress of the work vis-à-vis execution timeline as stipulated in the contract
- ii. Backlog attributable to the selected bidder including the unexecuted portion of work does not appear to be executable within a balance available period considering its performance of execution.



- iii. Withdrawal from or abandonment of the work by the selected bidder before completion of the work as per contract.
- iv. Non-completion of work by the selected bidder within the scheduled completion period as per contract or as extended from time to time, for the reasons attributable to the selected bidder.
- v. Termination of contract on account of any other reason/s attributable to the selected bidder.
- vi. Assignment, transfer, subletting of contract without prior permission.
- vii. Non-compliance to any contractual condition or any other default attributable to the selected bidder
- viii. If the successful bidder becomes insolvent or bankrupt
- ix. If the successful bidder, in the judgment of BHEL has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for or in executing the contract
- x. Upon termination of this contract, BHEL shall settle the payment/s only for the deliverables actually executed prior to the date of such termination. No further payment shall be made on termination.

4.12 Integrity Pact (IP)

The bidders shall have to enter into Integrity Pact(IP) with BHEL (Annexure-10)

a. IP is a tool to ensure that activities and transactions between the company and its bidders/contractors are handled in a fair, transparent and corruption-free manner. Following Independent, External Monitors (IEMs) on the present panel has been appointed by BHEL with the approval of CVC to oversee implementation of IP in BHEL.

N	IEM	Ph/email
1.	Shri Otem Dai, IAS (Retd.)	iem1@bhel.in
2.	Shri Bishwamitra Pandey, IRAS (Retd.)	iem2@bhel.in
3.	Shri Mukesh Mittal, IRS (Retd.)	iem3@bhel.in

- b. The IP as enclosed with the RFP is to be submitted (duly signed by authorized signatory) along with technical bid (Part-A). Only those bidders who have entered into such an IP with BHEL would be competent to participate in the bidding. In other words, entering into this pact would be a preliminary qualification.
- c. Please refer to section 8 of IP for the roles and responsibilities of IEMs. In case of any complaint arising out of the bidding process, the matter may be referred to any one of the above IEMs. All correspondence with the IEMs shall be done through email only.
- d. No routine correspondence shall be addressed to the IEM (phone/post/email) regarding the clarifications, time extensions, or any other administrative queries,



etc. on the RFP issued. All such clarifications/issues shall be addressed directly to the RFP issuing department's officials.

4.13 Corrupt or fraudulent practices

The bidder along with its associates/ collaborators/ sub-contractors/sub-vendors/ consultants/ service providers shall strictly adhere to BHEL Fraud Prevention Policy hosted on the BHEL website http://www.bhel.com and shall immediately bring to the BHEL about any fraud or suspected fraud as soon as it comes to their notice.

4.14 Integrity commitment, performance of the contract and punitive action

Commitment by BHEL: BHEL commits to take all measures necessary to prevent corruption in connection with the bidding process and execution of the contract. BHEL will during this process treat all bidder(s) in a transparent and fair manner, and with equity.

Commitment by bidder: The bidder commits to take all measures to prevent corruption and will not directly or indirectly influence any decision or benefit which he is not legally entitled to nor will act or omit in any manner which tantamount to an offence punishable under any provision of the Indian Penal Code, 1860 or any other law in force in India. The bidder will, when presenting his bid, disclose any and all payments he has made, and is committed to or intends to make to agents, brokers or any other intermediaries in connection with the award of the contract and shall adhere to relevant guidelines issued from time to time by Govt. of India/ BHEL. The bidder will perform/ execute the contract as per the contract terms & conditions and will not default without any reasonable cause, which causes loss of business/ money/ reputation, to BHEL.

If any bidder during pre-bid/ biding/ post-bidding/ award/ execution/ post-execution stage indulges in malpractices, cheating, bribery, fraud or and other misconduct or formation of cartel so as to influence the bidding process or influence the price or acts or omits in any manner which tantamount to an offence punishable under any provision of the Indian Penal Code, 1860 or any other law in force in India, then, action may be taken against such bidder/ supplier/ contractor as per extant guidelines of the company available on www. bhel.com and/or under applicable legal provisions".

4.15 Not Banned / Holiday listed / Blacklisted

The bidder should not have been banned from participating in tenders or on holiday list/ blacklist at the time of bidding by BHEL or its Administrative Ministry (Ministry of Heavy Industries & Public Enterprises) or any other CPSEs or Government Authorities.



Bidder to submit a declaration as part of General Declaration Certificate-Declaration (Annexure-3).

4.16 Conflict of interest

- a. In case the Proprietor, Partner or Director of the bidder, or any of the team members proposed to be deployed have any relative or relation employed in BHEL, the authority inviting the bid shall be informed of the fact as and when the bidder/ consultant become aware of them. Failing to do so, BHEL may, at its sole discretion, reject the bid or cancel the contract and forfeit any money due.
- b. The term 'relative' for this purpose would be as defined in Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013.
- c. The consulting firm shall not engage, either directly or indirectly, during the term of this contract, in any business or professional activities that would conflict with the activities assigned to them under this contract.
- d. The remuneration of the consulting firm pursuant to this contract shall constitute the consulting firm's sole remuneration in connection with this contract or the services and the consulting firm shall not accept for its own benefit any trade commission, discount or similar payment in connection with activities pursuant to this Agreement
- e. The Consulting firm agrees that during the term of this Agreement and after its termination, the Consulting firm, or any of its affiliates, shall be disqualified from providing goods, works or services related to the initial assignment (other than the services specifically mentioned in this RFP).
- f. The consulting firm whether itself and/or for/with or in association with/or on behalf of or through any other Entity is engaged in any activity or business which would or may be reasonably expected to directly or indirectly, materially adversely affect the interest of BHEL or any such activity/association would or may impair his ability to render fair, impartial, technically sound and objective assistance or advice, or unbiased services or may result in it giving an unfair competitive advantage to any other person.

4.17 Force Majeure

"Force Majeure" shall mean any event beyond the reasonable control of the parties including but not limited to fire, flood, earthquake, epidemics or other acts of God, war, riots, civil war and restraints of Governing States, as the case may be, and which is unavoidable notwithstanding the reasonable care of the party affected.

If either party is prevented, hindered or delayed from or in performing any of its obligations under the contract by an event of Force Majeure, then it shall notify the other in writing of the occurrence of such event and the circumstances thereof within 15 (fifteen) days after the occurrence of such event. The party who has given such notice shall be excused from the performance or punctual performance of its obligations under the contract for so long as the relevant event of Force Majeure



continues and to the extent that such party's performance is prevented, hindered or delayed. The time for completion shall be extended by a period of time equal to the period of delay caused due to such Force Majeure event.

Delay or non-performance by either party hereto caused by the occurrence of any event of Force Majeure shall not constitute a default or breach of the Contract or give rise to any claim for damages or additional cost or expense occasioned thereby.

In case of delays lasting over one month notwithstanding force majeure, BHEL reserves the right to terminate the contract and, the provisions governing termination as given in this document shall apply.

4.18 Conciliation & Arbitration

Conciliation: If at any time any Disputes (which term shall mean and include any dispute, difference, question or disagreement arising in connection with construction, meaning, operation, effect, interpretation or breach of the Contract/Order, which the Parties are unable to settle mutually), arise inter-se the Parties, the same may be referred by either Party to Conciliation to be conducted through Independent Experts Committee (IEC) to be appointed by competent authority of the Buyer from the BHEL Panel of Conciliators.

- a. No serving or a retired employee of the BHEL/ Administrative Ministry of BHEL shall be included in the BHEL Panel of Conciliators.
- b. Any other person(s) can be appointed as Conciliator(s) who is/are mutually agreeable to both the parties from outside the BHEL Panel of Conciliators.
- c. The proceedings of Conciliation shall broadly be governed by Part-III of the Arbitration & Conciliation Act, 1996 or any statutory modification thereof and as provided in the BHEL Conciliation Scheme (Available on www.bhel.com)

Arbitration: Except as provided elsewhere in this Contract, in case Parties are unable to reach amicable settlement (whether by Conciliation or otherwise) in respect of any dispute or difference; arising out of the formation, breach, termination, validity or execution of the Contract; or, the respective rights and liabilities of the Parties; or, in relation to interpretation of any provision of the Contract; or in any manner touching upon the Contract (hereinafter referred to as the 'Dispute'), then, either Party may, commence arbitration in respect of such Dispute by a notice in writing to the other party under the provisions of the Arbitration & Conciliation Act, 1996 (hereinafter referred to as the 'Notice'). The Notice shall contain the particulars of all claims to be referred to arbitration in sufficient detail and shall also indicate the monetary amount of such claim. The arbitration shall be conducted by a sole arbitrator (chosen mutually by the Parties from a list of three names offered by BHEL to the other Party) to be appointed by BHEL



Unit/ Division/ Business Group issuing the Contract within 45 days of receipt of the complete Notice in terms of this Clause.

- a. The language of the arbitration shall be English. The Arbitrator/Arbitral Tribunal shall pass a reasoned award
- b. The cost of arbitration shall initially be borne equally by the Parties subject to the final apportionment of the cost of the arbitration in the award of the Arbitrator(s).
- c. Subject as aforesaid, the provisions of Arbitration and Conciliation Act 1996 (India) or statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof and the rules made thereunder as in force from time to time shall apply to the arbitration proceedings under this clause. The seat of arbitration shall be the place from where the contract is Issued.
- d. Notwithstanding the existence of any dispute or differences and/or reference for the arbitration, the Contractor shall proceed with and continue without hindrance the performance of its obligations under this Contract with due diligence and expedition in a professional manner except where the Contract has been terminated by either Party in terms of this Contract.

In case the successful Bidder is CPSE, the following provision for arbitration would apply:

e. "In the event of any dispute or difference relating to the interpretation and application of the provisions of commercial contract(s) between Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs) / Port Trusts inter se and also between CPSEs and Government Departments/ Organizations (excluding disputes relating to Railways, Income Tax, Customs & Excise Departments), such dispute or difference shall be taken up by either party for its resolution through AMRCD as mentioned in DPE OM No. 05/0003/2019-FTS-10937 dated 14th December, 2022 and the decision of AMRCD on the said dispute will be binding on both the parties."

4.19 Applicable law & jurisdiction of the court

The contract including all matters connected with this contract, its meaning and interpretation, and the relation between the parties shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the applicable Indian Law and shall be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of Indian Courts located at New Delhi (India) only.

4.20 Compliance to regulations and bye-laws

The successful bidder shall conform to the provisions of any statute relating to the work and regulations and bye-laws of the statutory authority. The successful bidder shall be bound to give all notices required by statutory regulations or by-laws as aforesaid and to pay all fees and taxes payable to any authority in respect thereof. The successful bidder shall be responsible for all statutory obligations and any other laws



in above regard in force from time to time regarding employment or condition of service of bidder's workmen or employees.

4.21 Accidents/ damages/ claims liabilities

- a. In event of any accident or damages while on BHEL's duty, BHEL shall be completely free from any liability of any nature connected with the accident/ damage(s). Selected bidder himself will be fully and exclusively responsible for any personal injury to the deployed personnel or any other person in employment or damage to any property or person, including any third party claims.
- b. Selected bidder may safeguard his interest through insurance at his own cost. Under no circumstances, BHEL will take any liability arising out of or due to the action of the deployed manpower, including third-party claims. Selected bidder will have the sole liability of the damages/injuries caused to the deployed manpower or due to the action of the deployed manpower (including accidents and third-party claims)
- c. Arrangement of alternative/substitute is the responsibility of selected bidder unless otherwise exempted for reasons beyond Service Provider's control.

4.22 Safety and statutory requirements

The team deployed by the selected consulting firm shall abide by all Safety Rules and Guidelines of BHEL and ensure the usage of proper Personal Protection Equipment (PPEs) while visiting the manufacturing units/ sites. The consulting firm shall also be responsible for compliance to statutory and government regulations as applicable as well as the safety & welfare of all employees deployed at BHEL and payment of salaries to their employees and statutory deductions if any.

4.23 Liabilities

The selected bidder shall be responsible for any financial losses, damages, liabilities arising out of any breach of contract or any other event attributable to the bidder's management of the contract. BHEL can recover all such losses from the unpaid invoices of the selected bidder or by invoking the available bank guarantees.

4.24 Guarantees

The bidder will indemnify, protect BHEL against all claims, losses, costs, damages, expenses, action suits and other proceedings resulting from infringement of any patent, trademarks, copyrights, etc. in respect of the items or services supplied by them. The bidder will be required to bear all the costs in such cases.

4.25 Professional liability

a. The consulting firm is expected to carry out its assignment with due diligence and in accordance with the prevailing standards of the profession. The consulting firm shall provide detailed reports / presentations in line with deliverables. The reports/



- presentations shall be reviewed by BHEL for validation of the suggestions/ progress made. BHEL may also at times engage any other party for validation of the recommendations made by the consulting firm.
- b. In case, any deficiency is observed or the recommendations suggested by the consulting firm is not appropriate, the report/presentations shall not be accepted and the consulting firm would be required to make a fresh report/presentations. Such delays in the final acceptance of the consulting firm's report/presentation after every stage shall be considered as deficiency in service. To avoid deficiency in service and delays arising out of such events, it shall be the endeavour of the consulting firm to hold mutual discussions with BHEL at every stage in order to complete the activities as scheduled.

4.26 Change in character of the bidder

In the event, wherein there is any change in the character of the consulting firm by means of changes in structure or the transfer of ownership of the firm, the consulting firm will have to inform BHEL at least three months in advance in writing with proper documentation that the new entity shall be contractually accountable to BHEL for the contract signed by the original firm.

4.27 Non-Disclosure Agreement

The selected bidder after placement of work order and prior to commencement of work must sign the Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA) as per the format specified by BHEL (Annexure-11) or any other as mutually agreed.

4.28 Use of contract documents, specifications, design

The consulting firm shall not, without BHEL's prior written consent, disclose the contract or any provision thereof or any data, findings etc. or information furnished by or on behalf of BHEL in connection or to any person other than a person employed by the consulting firm in the performance of the work order/contract. Disclosure to any such employed person shall be made in confidence and shall extend only so as may be necessary for the purpose of such performance. The bidder will bind such employees to the secrecy of information.

4.29 Documents/ reports/ deliverables

Reports & documents submitted by the successful bidder shall become and remain the property of BHEL. BHEL will be authorized to use the intellectual property contained in the report for its own purposes in accordance with the contract. BHEL can download, make copies, distribute, modify and create derivate works of the reports.



4.30 Right to implementation

BHEL shall be at its liberty to modify/implement the suggestions/strategies arising out of the engagement of the selected bidder either directly or through any other party.

4.31 Modification

Modification of the terms and conditions of this contract, including any modification in the scope or price of the contract, may only be made by written agreement between BHEL and the selected bidder.

4.32 Sub-contracting and assignment

This contract shall not be assigned or subcontracted by the consulting firm to any third party without the prior written consent of BHEL.

4.33 Office at site

The successful bidder shall deploy the resources for this work at BHEL's registered office located at BHEL House, Siri Fort, New Delhi or any other BHEL office in Delhi-NCR as specified by BHEL.

4.34 Registration

Bidder must be registered on the date of bid submission under relevant applicable Indian Laws

Bidder must submit copies of Registration Certificate, Permanent Account No. (PAN), Provident Fund (PF) Registration and GST Registration.



5 SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

5.1 Clarifications

Bidders are requested to submit their queries (Annexure-5) on the RFP if any, latest by 8th February 2023 11:00 AM (IST). No further opportunity will be granted to seek clarifications.

BHEL's responses to the queries/clarifications etc. shall also form part of this RFP document and will be hosted on the tender portal without disclosing source of the query. No further queries shall be entertained until and unless decided by BHEL and all decisions taken by BHEL shall be binding on all the bidders.

5.2 Signing of the bids

Bidder must be registered under relevant applicable Indian/Foreign Laws and in case of foreign business entity, it must be authorized by the global principal to operate in India through its branch office in India. Bidder shall submit the bid authenticated by an authorized person from any of his offices in India who will be interacting with BHEL during evaluation of the bid. The bidder's bid should not carry any sections like clarifications/ 'as orally told'/ 'to be discussed'/ interpretations and assumptions. All pages of the bid including formats & annexures, and all pages of the RFP document, together with subsequent clarifications/ corrigendum issued shall be duly signed, dated and stamped by the authorized signatory. The authorization to sign the document must be confirmed by a written power of attorney accompanying the bid (Part-A) as per Annexure-4.

5.3 Submission of bids

The bidders shall submit their bids either in the 'Tender Box' placed at reception of the Corporate Office, BHEL House, Siri Fort, New Delhi-110049 or send the same by pre-paid registered post or by recognized courier so that they are received on/before 14th February 2023 1500 hrs IST. In exceptional cases, where due to bulky size of the bid documents and it is not possible to drop the bids in the tender box, the bid documents may be handed over to the contact persons of CTM group (as mentioned at page No 5) and acknowledgment obtained. The bids shall be submitted in two parts as below.

The bids shall be submitted in two parts as below.

Part-A: Technical & Commercial bid – (one original and two copies) containing:

a. All technical and commercial details other than price including documents and formats as per the Part-A checklist (Annexure-1);



- b. Unpriced price schedule as per Annexure-7;
- c. Signed RFP and other related documents.

Part-B: Price bid (only original) containing only price including documents and formats as per the Part-B checklist (Annexure-1)

- a. To be submitted strictly in line with the 'Price Schedule' (Annexure-13)
- b. No conditions whatsoever shall be given in this Part
- c. Bidder shall not omit or leave blank against any item in the price schedule. In such a case, bids are liable for rejection.

Both Part-A and Part-B should be submitted in separate sealed envelopes. The envelopes should be marked as Part-A & Part-B indicating RFP ref no., bid subject, bid submission & opening date, name and address of the bidder. Both the envelopes shall be kept in one sealed envelope and this envelope should be superscripted with "Appointment of a Transaction Advisor for the Formation of Joint Venture Company in India with a Central Public Sector Enterprise (CPSE) for Coal to Chemicals business" along with RFP ref no., bid submission & opening date, name and address of the bidder.

5.4 Due date

Bids must be submitted on or before 14th February 2023 1500 hrs IST or extended date/time if any. BHEL shall not be responsible for receipt of bids after the due date and time of submission. Bids received after the specified time of their submission shall be treated as 'Late' and shall not be considered under any circumstances. BHEL, at its discretion, may extend the bid submission date. Information related to the same shall be hosted on the tender portal.

5.5 Zero Deviation Clause

This is a zero-deviation RFP document. Bidders have to submit a No Deviation Certificate (Annexure-6). Deviation with respect to RFP terms & conditions/suggestions in technical bid/ price bid shall not be considered by BHEL. However, BHEL is open to suggestions in the larger interest of meeting the objective of the RFP, but on/before 8th February 2023 11 AM (IST).

5.6 Rejection of the bids

Any one of the following may lead to rejection of the bid:

- a. Failure to furnish all the information required, or submission of bids not responsive to the RFP document in any respect
- b. Overwriting/cutting etc. in the bid not duly attested by the authorized signatory



- c. Bids received after the specified date and time
- d. Failure to submit clarifications before due-date
- e. Mentioning of price anywhere in Part-A including unpriced price schedule
- f. Bids which do not comply with the RFP conditions or contains counter conditions
- g. Bids from bidders who are under suspension (banned) by any Unit/Region/Division of BHEL or its administrative ministry.
- h. Omissions or no entry against any item in the price schedule
- i. If the information given is incorrect, wrong, and/or contrary to the facts
- j. Canvassing in any form in connection with the subject

The acceptance of a bid rests with BHEL and does not bind BHEL to accept the lowest bid or any bid and reserves to itself full rights for rejection without assigning any reasons whatsoever.

5.7 Order of precedence

In the event of any ambiguity or conflict between the clauses of the RFP Documents, the order of precedence shall be in the order below:

- a. Corrigenda/ addenda/ amendments/ clarifications
- b. Invitation for the bid
- c. Special conditions of contract
- d. General conditions of contract

5.8 Opening of bids

The technical & commercial bid (PART-A) shall be opened on 14th February 2023 1530 hrs IST at Corporate Office, BHEL House, Siri Fort, New Delhi 110049, in the presence of authorized representatives of the bidders, who may like to be present. Representatives of the bidders who are present shall sign a register evidencing their presence.

5.9 Opening of price bids

Price bids of those bidders who have submitted responsive bids and who are techno commercially qualified bidders will only be opened. All the techno-commercially acceptable bidders shall be informed of the date, time and venue of opening of the price bids. Bidder's representatives who are present shall sign a register evidencing their presence.



5.10 Rounding-Off

Any calculation done for the purpose of evaluation and/or estimation shall be considered up to two decimal points and without rounding-off.

5.11 Evaluation

The evaluation of bids shall be carried out as per section- 3 "Evaluation of bids"

5.12 Price discrepancy

- a. If there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the total price (which is obtained by multiplying the unit price by the quantity), the unit price shall prevail and the total price will be corrected accordingly.
- b. If there is a discrepancy in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected;
- c. If there is any difference between the amount in figures and in words, the amount quoted by the bidder in words shall prevail; and
- d. If there is such discrepancy in the offer, the same shall be conveyed to the bidder with a cut-off date up to which the bidder has to send his acceptance on the above lines and if the bidder does not agree to the decision of the BHEL, the bid is liable to be rejected.

5.13 Validity of bid

The bids shall be deemed open for acceptance for a minimum period of 180 days from the date of opening of Part-A. BHEL may solicit extension of this period, requests for which will be made in writing through e-mail.

5.14 Award of contract

The bidder who is techno commercially acceptable and evaluated lowest as per criteria laid out in Section-3 "Evaluation of bids" shall be declared as the successful bidder. BHEL will award the contract to the successful bidder by sending the Letter of Intent (LOI)/Work Order (WO) by email/post. Bidder within 10 working days of receipt of the same, shall sign, stamp and return it to BHEL as a token of his acceptance.

5.15 Contract period

The scope of the work order should be completed during this period as per the specified timeline of 24 weeks. However, if the delay in delivery is due to reasons attributed to BHEL, BHEL may extend this contract for a further period beyond the scheduled contract completion date. For any such extensions, terms and conditions shall remain the same.



The decision to extend the contract shall be at the sole discretion of BHEL and the bidder shall not claim any rights for extension of contract. Acceptance of services beyond the scheduled delivery period will not be construed as condonation of delay.

5.16 Travel expenses

The bidders should quote the prices inclusive of all charges, overtime charges, out of pocket allowance, local travel in NCR region. However, for travel outside the Delhi-NCR region, BHEL will arrange 2nd AC rail/ economy class air tickets, local travel in tour city, and BHEL guest house/ hotel whichever applicable (limited to BHEL's E7 level for partner/director, E6 level for the project manager and E5 for consultant). BHEL at its discretion may or may not accept the proposed visit and may suggest alternate interaction mechanisms like video conferencing. All train/ flight/hotel/guesthouse bookings will be made by BHEL. Any other expenses not mentioned above shall be borne by the consulting firm themselves. Expenses towards any international travel of the team members (if required), if done on BHEL's behest shall be borne by BHEL.

5.17 Security Deposit (SD)

Successful consulting firm shall be required to deposit a SD amount, which shall be 5% of the contract value before commencement of the work and can be deposited in one of the following forms:

- a. Cash (as permissible under the extant Income Tax Act)
- b. Local cheques of Scheduled Banks (subject to realization)/ Pay Order/ Demand Draft/ EFT in favour of BHEL
- c. Bank Guarantee from Scheduled Banks/ Public Financial Institutions as defined in the Companies Act.
- d. Fixed Deposit Receipt issued by Scheduled Banks/ Public Financial Institutions as defined in the Companies Act (FDR should be in the name of the Contractor, a/c BHEL)
- e. Securities available from Indian Post offices such as National Savings Certificates, Kisan Vikas Patras etc. (held in the name of Contractor furnishing the security and duly endorsed/ hypothecated/ pledged, as applicable, in favour of BHEL)

(Note: BHEL will not be liable or responsible in any manner for the collection of interest or renewal of the documents or in any other matter connected therewith)

The Security Deposit shall be valid for a period of six months beyond the period of the contract. All expenses incurred in obtaining such deposit shall be borne by the consulting firm. The consulting firm shall be responsible for extending the validity date and claim period of the guarantee on account of any delay on their part. The Security Deposit shall not carry any interest.



5.18 Global resource sharing

All the global resources including domain area experts of the bidder should be available to BHEL for this engagement without any additional costs. For this, the bidder must provide Proof of Arrangement (e.g. shareholding pattern) along with the bid.

5.19 Price escalation

The rates will be valid until the entire scope of the RFP, is executed in all respects. No escalation in the rates shall be accepted during the entire period of the contract.

5.20 Price Reduction Clause (PRC)

In case the successful bidder fails to complete the services within stipulated period then unless such failure is due to force majeure as defined earlier in this document or due to BHEL's default, there will be a reduction in contract price @ 1% for each week of delay or part thereof subject to maximum of 10% of contract price. BHEL may without prejudice to any methods of recovery, deduct the amount of such PRS from any money due or which may at any time become due to the consulting firm, or by recovery against the Security Deposit. A decision of BHEL in the matter of applicability of price reduction shall be final and binding. For this purpose, the total duration of the assignment shall be considered in place of intermediate stages.

5.21 Taxes & duties

- a. Consulting firm shall submit GST compliant invoice containing all the particulars as stipulated under Invoice Rules of GST Law. Payment shall be made to the firm only after submission of GST complaint invoice. The successful firm shall raise GST compliant invoice affixing GSTIN of BHEL's unit availing the services.
- b. BHEL reserves the right to protect its interest against any loss on account of availability of GST credit, wherever such GST ITC is available as per GST Law provisions.
- c. GSTIN of BHEL will be provided to the service provider(s) along with the work order.
- d. Any new/change in statutory levy as and when made applicable by the Government shall become applicable against documentary evidence.
- e. Payment to the service provider(s) will be subjected to TDS as per rules in force from time to time. The Tax Deduction at Source (TDS) shall be done as per the provisions of Income Tax Act & GST, as amended from time to time and a certificate to this effect shall be provided to the service provider(s) by BHEL.
- f. Applicable GST shall also be recoverable from the service provider(s) in case of PRS recovery/penalty on account of breach of terms of contract.
- g. BHEL will reimburse price plus GST. It is presumed that all other taxes excluding GST are included in the price.



5.22 Variation in taxes & duties

Any upward variation in GST shall be considered for reimbursement provided supply of goods and services are made within schedule date stipulated in the contract or any extension thereof for reasons solely attributable to BHEL. However downward variation shall be subject to adjustment as per actual GST applicability.

In case the Government imposes any new levy/tax on the output service/goods after price bid opening, the same shall be reimbursed by BHEL at actual. The reimbursement under this clause is restricted to the direct transaction between BHEL and consulting firm only and within the contractual delivery period only.

In case any new tax/levy/duty etc. becomes applicable after the date of bidder's techno-commercial bid but before the opening of the price bid, the bidder must convey its impact on his price duly substantiated by documentary evidence in support of the same before opening of price bid. Claim for any such impact after opening the price bid will not be considered by BHEL for reimbursement of tax or reassessment of bid.

5.23 General

- a. In case of changes in scope and/ or technical specifications and/ or commercial terms & conditions, having price implications, techno-commercially acceptable bidders shall be asked by BHEL (after freezing the scope, technical specifications, and commercial terms & conditions) to submit the impact of such changes on their price bid. A suitable cut-off date and time shall be given to all the techno-commercially acceptable bidders to submit the impact on their price bids. In the event of any bidder, after finalizing the technical specification & scope of supply, opting to revise and submit their latest price bid instead of submitting impact on their price bid asked by BHEL, then their original price (i.e. the previous bid) shall also be opened to know the price impact.
- b. Notwithstanding any other condition/provision in the RFP documents, in case of ambiguity or incomplete documents/clarifications pertaining to qualification and evaluation criteria, BHEL may give the bidders a fixed deadline after bid opening to provide complete & unambiguous documents/clarification, etc. in support of meeting the criteria. In case, the bidder fails to submit any document or submits incomplete documents within the given time, the bid will be rejected.
- c. In case any typing error/other clerical errors is noticed by the bidder, in the tender documents, the same must be pointed out and got clarified before submission of offer, or else, BHEL's interpretation shall prevail & shall be binding on the bidder.



5.24 Checklist

For the proper completion of the RFP, the checklists shall be included with the bid, duly signed by the authorized signatory (**Annexure-1**).

5.25 Terms of payment

The Bidder shall quote single lumpsum price in Indian Rupees covering the total project as given in the 'Scope of Work' with a validity of one year. In exceptional circumstances, BHEL may solicit the Bidder's consent for extension of the proposal validity period.

Payments will be released in five stages subject to fulfilment of the obligations for the milestones as given below:

SI. No.	Scope of work section	Milestone	Payment, %
1	2.3.2 &	Review of Business Plan and preparation of financial model with sensitivity analysis	10%*
2	2.3.2	Proposed structure of Joint Venture including terms of engagement, extant of BHEL's role in supply of equipment, resource evaluation, expected pricing of inputs and offtake (between JVC and JV Partner), valuation of assets and determination of lease rentals, debt equity proportion, financing mode of debt & currency denomination etc., accounting and tax implication & its treatment (direct tax and indirect tax) including compliance on both the stakeholders (BHEL & JVC), regulatory guidelines etc.	30%*
3	2.3.2 IV	Finalisation of definitive documents/ agreements (JV Agreement, Offtake agreement, AoA, MoA etc.)	20%
4	2.3.2 V	Approval from the Board of Directors of both JV partners. Preparation of documentation for obtaining various approvals from Government and other agencies.	20%
5	2.3.2 VI & VII	Incorporation of JV company & Closure of proposed transaction	20%



Payment will be made only against receipt of the GST compliant invoices and as per the schedule prescribed for each activity. BHEL's authorized officer will duly authenticate & certify each document before processing the claim. BHEL, through electronic fund transfers, shall make payment within 45 days after submission of bills certified for payment.

* Payment to be released on confirmation by Cross Functional Team of BHEL for the JV



ANNEXURE-1 CHECKLIST

(To be filled by the bidder and submit along with the Part-A bid)

SN	PARTICULARS	BHEL's	Confirmation
		REQUIREMENT	Y/N
		(to be submitted)	
As pa	art of Part-A bid		
1.	Bid form	Annexure-2	
2.	General Declaration Certificate	Annexure-3	
3.	Power of Attorney	Annexure-4	
4.	Clarifications	Annexure-5	
5.	No Deviation Certificate	Annexure-6	
6.	Unpriced Price Schedule	Annexure-7	
7.	Experience of the consulting firm (PQR)	Annexure-8	
8.	CV of all team members (PQR)	Annexure-9	
9.	Integrity Pact Agreement	Annexure-10	
10.	Non-Disclosure Agreement	Annexure-11	
11.	Bank Guarantee	Annexure-12	
12.	Certificates	I	
	Copies to be submitted:		
	I. Registration Certificates		
	II. Permanent Account Number		
	III. GST registration		
	IV. PF registration		
	V. Proof of Arrangement with the parent		
13.	Confirm that all pages of Part-A & subsequent	Bidder to confirm	
	clarifications/ corrigendum are signed, dated		
	& stamped		
14.	One original & two copies of Part-A bid	Bidder to confirm	
	submitted		
15.	Both Part-A & Part-B bids submitted in sealed	Bidder to confirm	
	envelopes		



16.	Part-A bid is accompanied by an unpriced price schedule and does not contain any	Bidder to confirm	
	financial information		
17.	Bid is free from any overwriting, correction, cutting, etc. in case of any such overwriting,	Bidder to confirm	
	, ,		
	correction, cutting, etc. has been attested		
As pa	art of Part-B bid		
1.	Price schedule (Part-B)	Annexure-13	
2.	Price bid (only original) has been submitted in	Bidder to confirm	
	a separate sealed cover		
3.	Bidder has not made any omissions or left any	Bidder to confirm	
	blank items in the price bid		

Place & date

Signature & seal of the Authorized Signatory



ANNEXURE-2

BID FORM

(To be typed in the letterhead of the bidder)

To,

(Write Name & Address of Officer of BHEL inviting the bid)

Dear Sir/ Madam,

Having examined the RFP No [•] we, the undersigned, hereby offer to provide consultancy services in conformity with the terms and conditions of RFP.

We are enclosing our bid including "Techno-commercial bid, Part-A" in original plus two copies and "Price bid, Part-B" in original with the details as per the requirements of the Proposal Documents, for your evaluation. It is further noted that it is not permissible to put any remarks/conditions in the "Price bid" and we agree that the bid shall be rejected on doing so.

The offer is valid up to 180 days from the due date of submission of the proposal document. i.e. $[\bullet]$.

Should our offer be accepted by BHEL for Award, we further agree to furnish 'Security Deposit' for the work as provided for in the RFP Conditions within the stipulated time as indicated by BHEL.

We further agree to execute all the works referred to in the said Request for Proposal upon the terms and conditions contained or referred to therein and as detailed in the appendices annexed thereto.

Until a formal contract is prepared and executed, this bid, together with your LOI/ Work order, shall constitute a binding contract between us.

Place & date

Signature & seal of the Authorized Signatory

ग्रीएव ई एल HHFEL

ANNEXURE-3 GENERAL DECLARATION CERTIFICATE

To,

(Write Name & Address of Officer of BHEL inviting the bid)

Dear Sir/Madam,

Sub: Declaration by the authorised signatory

Ref: RFP Ref No: [●]

I, [•] hereby certify that all the information and data furnished with regard to this RFP No. [•] are true and complete to the best of my knowledge. I have gone through the specification, conditions and stipulations in detail and agree to comply with the requirements and intent of specification.

I hereby certify that all the documents submitted by us in support of the possession of "Qualifying Requirements" are true copies of the original and are fully compliant required for qualifying / applying in the bid and shall produce the original of same as and when required by Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited.

I hereby further confirm that no tampering has been done with the documents submitted in support of our qualification as a bidder. I understand that at any stage (during the bidding process or while executing the awarded works) if it is found that fake/false/ forged bid qualifying / supporting documents/certificates were submitted, it would lead to summarily rejection of our bid/termination of contract. BHEL shall be at liberty to initiate other appropriate actions as per the terms of the bid / Contract or other extant policies of Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited.

We hereby declare that we have not been placed on any holiday list or blacklist declared by BHEL or its Administrative Ministry (Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises).

I, further certify that I have been duly authorized by my company i.e. under mentioned bidder for signing and submission of bids and all other documents.

Place & date

Signature & seal of the Authorized Signatory



ANNEXURE-4 POWER OF ATTORNEY

(To be typed on non-judicial Stamp Papers of appropriate value as applicable and notarised)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that I/We do hereby make, nominate, constitute and appoint Mr [•], whose signature given below herewith to be true and lawful Attorney of M/s [•] hereinafter called 'Company', for submitting bid/entering into Contract and inter alia, sign, execute all papers and to do necessary lawful acts on behalf of Company with M/s Bharat Heavy Electricals Ltd, Corporate Technology Management, BHEL house, Siri fort, New Delhi 110049 [•] in connection with [•] vide RFP Ref No. [•] dated [•].

And the Company do hereby agree to ratify and confirm all acts, deeds, things or proceedings as may be lawfully done by the said attorney and by or on behalf of the company and in the name of the company, by virtue of the powers conferred herein and the same shall be binding on the company and shall have full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the common seal of the company has been hereunto affixed in the manner hereinafter appearing on the document.

Place & date CEO/Country Head/Director/equivalent

Witness Signature of Mr/Ms.....(Attorney)

Notary public Attested by: CEO/Country Head/ Director/ equivalent



ANNEXURE-5 CLARIFICATIONS

CNI	Defended field December	Caratianta	_
Name of the	e bidder:		
RFP Ref no.:			

SN		Reference of	Suggestion/ query		
	Page No.	Section No.	Clause No.	Subject	

Place & date



ANNEXURE-6 NO DEVIATION CERTIFICATE

(To be typed in the letterhead of the bidder)

To,
(Write Name & Address of Officer of BHEL inviting the bid)
,
Dear Sir/ Madam,
Dear Sir/ Madairi,
Sub: No Deviation Certificate

Ref: 1) RFP Ref no: [•]

2) All other pertinent issues to date

We hereby confirm that we have not changed/ modified/materially altered any of the RFP documents as downloaded from the website/ issued by BHEL and in case of such observance at any stage, it shall be treated as null and void.

We also hereby confirm that we have neither set any terms and conditions and nor have we taken any deviation from the RFP conditions together with other references applicable for the above-referred RFP.

We further confirm our unqualified acceptance to all Terms and Conditions and unqualified compliance to RFP Conditions.

We confirm to have submitted our offer in accordance with RFP instructions and as per aforesaid references.

Thanking you,

Yours sincerely,

Place & date



ANNEXURE-7 UNPRICED PRICE SCHEDULE (PART-A)

Subject:							
Name o	of bidder:						
SN	Item description	Unit of measurement	Price inclusive of all taxes & duties excluding GST				
A	В	С	D				

INR

Place & date

RFP no:

1

Signature & seal of the Authorized Signatory

NA

Note: Price not be mentioned in this annexure

Lump-sum consultancy

charges for this engagement



ANNEXURE-8

Experience of the consulting firm List of reference works (Clause 3.1/b)

(To be typed in the letterhead of the Authorized Signatory of the bidder duly signed)

SN	Project	Customer	Work	Work	Value of	Brief of	Zero	Completion
		name,	order	Order	order	work	date	Date
		contact	ref.	date				
		address,						
		Ph. no.	,					
		email						
1								
2								
_								

Other documents to submit:

- Copy of Work Order/completion certificate duly certified by the Authorized Signatory of the bidder on letter head
- ii. Profit & Loss statement and Balance sheet of client

Place & date



ANNEXURE-9 CV of Team Members

(Please attach a separate sheet for Lead Partner/Partners, & Consultants)

1	Name of the Team Member	
2	Current Designation in the firm	
3	Proposed position in this assignment	
4	Years in the Firm	
5	Date of Birth	
6	Nationality	
7	Education Qualification	
8	No. of years of consulting experience	
9	No. of years of consulting experience in similar works	
10	Area of Expertise	
11	Major Achievements	

I/ We, the undersigned, certify that, to the best of my/ our knowledge and belief, this profile correctly describes the team member, his/ her qualifications, and his/ her experience. I/ We understand that any wilful misstatement described herein may lead to disqualification or dismissal of the team member, if engaged.

In case any of the above information is found to be false or untrue or misleading or misrepresenting, I/ we am/ are aware that I/ we may be held liable for it and BHEL has the right to reject the offer in full or part without assigning any reasons, whatsoever.

Place & date



ANNEXURE-10 INTEGRITY PACT

Between

Bharat Heavy Electricals Ltd. (BHEL), a company registered under the Companies Act 1956 and having its registered office at "BHEL House", Siri Fort, New Delhi - 110049 (India) hereinafter referred to as "The Principal", which expression unless repugnant to the context or meaning hereof shall include its successors or assigns of the ONE PART

And

[•] (description of the party along with address), hereinafter referred to as "The bidder/ Contractor" which expression unless repugnant to the context or meaning hereof shall include its successors or assigns of the OTHER PART

Preamble

The Principal intends to award, under laid-down organizational procedures, contract/s for [•] The Principal values full compliance with all relevant laws of the land, rules and regulations, and the principles of economic use of resources, and of fairness and transparency in its relations with its bidder(s)/ Contractor(s).

In order to achieve these goals, the Principal will appoint Independent External Monitor(s), who will monitor the tender process and the execution of the contract for compliance with the principles mentioned above.

Section 1- Commitments of the Principal

- 1. The Principal commits itself to take all measures necessary to prevent corruption and to observe the following principles:
 - 1.1. No employee of the Principal, personally or through family members, will in connection with the tender for, or the execution of a contract, demand, take a promise for or accept, for self or third person, any material or immaterial benefit which the person is not legally entitled to.
 - 1.2. The Principal will, during the tender process treat all bidder(s) with equity and reason. The Principal will in particular, before and during the tender process, provide to all bidder(s) the same information and will not provide to any bidder(s) confidential/additional information through which the bidder(s) could obtain an advantage in relation to the tender process or the contract execution.
 - 1.3. The Principal will exclude from the process all known prejudiced persons.
- 2. If the Principal obtains information on the conduct of any of its employees which is a penal offence under the Indian Penal Code 1860 and Prevention of Corruption Act 1988 or any other statutory penal enactment, or if there be a substantive suspicion in this regard, the Principal will inform its Vigilance Office and in addition can initiate disciplinary actions.



Section 2- Commitments of the bidder(s)/ Contractor(s)

- 2. The bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) commit himself to take all measures necessary to prevent corruption. He commits himself to observe the following principles during his participation in the tender process and during the contract execution.
 - 2.1. The bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) will not, directly or through any other person or firm, offer, promise or give to the Principal or to any of the Principal's employees involved in the tender process or the execution of the contract or to any third person any material, immaterial or any other benefit which he/ she is not legally entitled to, in order to obtain in exchange any advantage of any kind whatsoever during the tender process or during the execution of the contract.
 - 2.2. The bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) will not enter with other bidder(s) into any illegal or undisclosed agreement or understanding, whether formal or informal. This applies in particular to prices, specifications, certifications, subsidiary contracts, submission or non-submission of bids or any other actions to restrict competitiveness or to introduce cartelization in the bidding process.
 - 2.3. The bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) will not commit any penal offence under the relevant Indian Penal Code (IPC) and Prevention of Corruption Act; further the bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) will not use improperly, for purposes of competition or personal gain, or pass on to others, any information or document provided by the Principal as part of the business relationship, regarding plans, technical proposals and business details, including information contained or transmitted electronically.
 - 2.4. Foreign bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) shall disclose the name and address of agents and representatives in India and Indian bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) to disclose their foreign principals or associates. The bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) will, when presenting his bid, disclose any and all payments he has made, and is committed to or intends to make to agents, brokers or any other intermediaries in connection with the award of the contract.
- 3. The bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) will not instigate third persons to commit offences outlined above or be an accessory to such offences.
- 4. The bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) shall not approach the Courts while representing the matters to IEMs and will await their decision in the matter.

Section 3- Disqualification from tender process and exclusion from future contracts

If the bidder(s)/ Contractor(s), before award or during execution has committed a transgression through a violation of Section 2 above, or acts in any other manner such as to put his reliability or credibility in question, the Principal is entitled to disqualify the bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) from the tender process or take action as per the separate "Guidelines on Banning of Business dealings with Suppliers/ Contractors", framed by the Principal.



Section 4- Compensation for Damages

- 1. If the Principal has disqualified the bidder from the tender process prior to the award according to Section 3, the Principal is entitled to demand and recover the damages equivalent Earnest Money Deposit/ bid Security.
- 2. If the Principal has terminated the contract according to Section 3, or if the Principal is entitled to terminate the contract according to section 3, the Principal shall be entitled to demand and recover from the Contractor liquidated damages equivalent to 5% of the contract value or the amount equivalent to Security Deposit/ Performance Bank Guarantee, whichever is higher.

Section 5- Previous Transgression

- 1. The bidder declares that no previous transgressions occurred in the last 3 years with any other company in any country conforming to the anti-corruption approach or with any other Public Sector Enterprise in India that could justify his exclusion from the tender process.
- 2. If the bidder makes an incorrect statement on this subject, he can be disqualified from the tender process or the contract, if already awarded, can be terminated for such reason.

Section 6- Equal treatment of all bidders/ Contractors / Sub-contractors

- 1. The Principal will enter into agreements with identical conditions as this one with all bidders and Contractors. In the case of sub-contracting, the Principal contractor shall be responsible for the adoption of IP by his sub-contractors and shall continue to remain responsible for any default by his sub-contractors.
- 2. The Principal will disqualify from the tender process all bidders who do not sign this pact or violate its provisions.

Section 7- Criminal Charges against violating bidders/ Contractors /Subcontractors

If the Principal obtains knowledge of the conduct of a bidder, Contractor or Subcontractor, or of an employee or a representative or an associate of a bidder, Contractor or Subcontractor which constitutes corruption, or if the Principal has substantive suspicion in this regard, the Principal will inform the Vigilance Office.

Section 8 -Independent External Monitor(s)

- 1. The Principal appoints competent and credible Independent External Monitor for this Pact. The task of the Monitor is to review independently and objectively, whether and to what extent the parties comply with the obligations under this agreement.
- 2. The Monitor is not subject to instructions by the representatives of the parties and performs his functions neutrally and independently. He reports to the CMD, BHEL.



- 3. The bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) accepts that the Monitor has the right to access without restriction to all contract documentation of the Principal including that provided by the bidder(s)/ Contractor(s). The bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) will grant the monitor, upon his request and demonstration of a valid interest, unrestricted and unconditional access to his contract documentation. The same is applicable to Sub-contractor(s). The Monitor is under contractual obligation to treat the information and documents of the bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) / Sub-contractor(s) with confidentiality in line with Non- disclosure agreement.
- 4. The Principal will provide to the Monitor sufficient information about all meetings among the parties related to the contract provided such meetings could have an impact on the contractual relations between the Principal and the Contractor. The parties offer to the Monitor the option to participate in such meetings.
- 5. The role of IEMs is advisory, would not be legally binding and it is restricted to resolving issues raised by an intending bidder regarding any aspect of the tender which allegedly restricts competition or bias towards some bidders. At the same time, it must be understood that IEMs are not consultants to the Management. Their role is independent in nature and the advice once tendered would not be subject to review at the request of the organization.
- 6. For ensuring the desired transparency and objectivity in dealing with the complaints arising out of any tendering process, the matter should be examined by the full panel of IEMs jointly as far as possible, who would look into the records, conduct an investigation, and submit their joint recommendations to the Management.
- 7. The IEMs would examine all complaints received by them and give their recommendations/ views to CMD, BHEL, at the earliest. They may also send their report directly to the CVO and the Commission, in case of suspicion of serious irregularities requiring legal/ administrative action. IEMs will tender their advice on the complaints within 10 days as far as possible.
- 8. The CMD, BHEL shall decide the compensation to be paid to the Monitor and its terms and conditions.
- 9. IEM should examine the process of integrity; they are not expected to concern themselves with fixing of responsibility of officers. Complaints alleging mala fide on the part of any officer of the organization should be looked into by the CVO of the concerned organization.
- 10. If the Monitor has reported to the CMD, BHEL, a substantiated suspicion of an offense under relevant Indian Penal Code/ Prevention of Corruption Act, and the CMD, BHEL has not, within reasonable time, taken visible action to proceed against such offense or reported it to the Vigilance Office, the Monitor may also transmit this information directly to the Central Vigilance Commissioner, Government of India.
- 11. The number of Independent External Monitor(s) shall be decided by the CMD, BHEL.



12. The word `Monitor' would include both singular and plural.

Section 9- Pact Duration

- 1. This Pact shall be operative from the date IP is signed by both the parties till the final completion of the contract for successful bidder and for all other bidders 6 months after the contract has been awarded. Issues like warranty/guarantee etc. should be outside the purview of IEMs.
- 2. If any claim is made/ lodged during the currency of IP, the same shall be binding and continue to be valid despite the lapse of this pact as specified above, unless it is discharged/ determined by the CMD, BHEL.

Section 10- Other Provisions

- 1. This agreement is subject to Indian laws and jurisdiction shall be the registered office of the Principal, i.e. New Delhi.
- 2. Changes and supplements, as well as termination notices, need to be made in writing. Side agreements have not been made.
- 3. If the Contractor is a partnership or a consortium, this agreement must be signed by all partners or consortium members.
- 4. Should one or several provisions of this agreement turn out to be invalid, the remainder of this agreement remains valid. In this case, the parties will strive to come to an agreement with their original intentions.
- 5. Only those bidders/contractors who have entered into this agreement with the Principal would be competent to participate in the bidding. In other words, entering into this agreement would be a preliminary qualification.

For & on behalf of the	For & on behalf of the
Principal (Office Seal)	bidder (Office Seal)
Witness:	Witness:
Name & Address:	Name & Address:
Place:	Place:
Date:	Date:



ANNEXURE-11 NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

(To be signed with the selected bidder)

M/s...

(Name and details of the consulting firm)

Non-Disclosure Agreement

BHEL has appointed M/s [•] (hereinafter referred to as 'Transaction Advisor') for providing services with regard to "Engagement of a Transaction Advisor for the "Formation of Joint Venture Company" in India with a Central Public Sector Enterprise (CPSE) for Coal to Chemicals business"

For purpose of this Agreement, "confidential information" means all information whether oral, hard copy or electronic which may be disclosed or to which the recipient may be provided access in accordance with this Agreement or which is generated as a result of or in connection with the business purposes which is generally not made available to the public.

As a condition of the consulting firm's involvement in this work with BHEL, the consulting firm will be bound by the following terms and conditions (hereinafter also the "Agreement"):

- In performing the duties for which the consulting firm has been associated with BHEL, the consulting firm may see and have access to confidential, sensitive and/or private information (hereafter "confidential information"), disclosed to him/her or known by him/her as a consequence of his/her association with BHEL and not generally known outside BHEL.
- During the consulting firm's involvement in this work & association with BHEL and
 after his association is terminated, the consulting firm will not disclose to, discuss or
 share with any unauthorized person, group or department, inside or outside of BHEL,
 any confidential information, in any form, except to the extent such disclosure,
 discussion or sharing is authorized by BHEL.
- The consulting firm will not use confidential information for his/her own personal purposes or any other purpose(s) without prior permission of BHEL.
- The consulting firm will not copy or remove any information from BHEL materials containing confidential information, except to the extent that the consulting firm is given permission to do so by BHEL.



- The consulting firm will not look at, examine, or retrieve any document, file, or database, except those to which the consulting firm is authorized to access and which are necessary for him/her to access in order to perform his/her assigned duties.
- The consulting firm will not discuss or share with any unauthorized person, group or department, inside or outside BHEL, any conclusions that the consulting firm or others draw from confidential information if discussing or sharing those conclusions would reveal any confidential information.
- If the consulting firm is ever uncertain whether any information is confidential or not, the consulting firm will resolve all uncertainties in favour of preserving the confidentiality of that information, and the consulting firm will seek clarification from BHEL before engaging in any conduct that could jeopardize the confidentiality of the information.
- If the consulting firm has to disclose the confidential information to a person inside BHEL, it is his/her responsibility to inform that person about the confidentiality code laid here and to make him/her accept this code before giving the confidential information to him/her.
- If the consulting firm becomes aware that a breach of confidentiality has occurred due to his/her own or others' acts or omissions, the consulting firm will immediately notify BHEL.
- Upon termination of his/her assignment or as requested by BHEL, the consulting firm will return all material containing confidential information to BHEL.

Exceptions

The confidentiality obligations shall not apply to:

- information which is, or later becomes obtainable from other non-confidential sources,
- information that was known to the recipient prior to the disclosure thereof; as evidenced by written records,
- information that the BHEL waives the recipient's duty as to the confidentiality in writing.
- disclosure of information required by law, any decree or order of Government authority, by court or statutory law, by judicial/quasi-judicial bodies, statutory bodies.

The consulting firm agrees to abide by the clauses of the Confidentiality Agreement that BHEL has executed with the consulting firm.



The obligations contained in this Agreement shall subsist for a period of one year from the date of signing this Agreement and shall not terminate upon completion or termination of the Exercise or Discussions.

The provisions of this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of India and any dispute arising out of this Agreement shall be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Indian courts located at New Delhi.

Please indicate your acceptance of the terms hereof by returning the enclosed copy of the present letter countersigned by your company's legal representatives, whereupon it shall become a binding agreement.

Bharat Heavy Electricals Ltd.	Agreed and accepted b		
Name:	Name:		
Title:	Title:		
Date:	Date:		



ANNEXURE-12 BANK GUARANTEE (IN LIEU OF SECURITY DEPOSIT)

(To be executed on non-judicial stamp paper of appropriate value)

In consideration of <u>Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited</u> (hereinafter referred to as the 'Employer'
which expression shall unless repugnant to the context or meaning thereof, include its
successors and permitted assigns) incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 and having
its registered office at BHEL House Siri Fort Road New Delhi 110049 ¹ through its Unit/office
at(name of the Unit) having agreed to exempt (Name of the Vendor /
Contractor / Vendors) with its registered office at ² (hereinafter called the said
"Contractor" which term includes vendors), from demand under the terms and conditions of
the Contract reference No dated ³ valued at
Rs ⁴ (Rupees) ⁴ (hereinafter called the said Contract), of Security
Deposit for the due fulfilment by the said Contractor of the terms and conditions contained
in the said Contract, on production of a Bank Guarantee for ₹5 (Rupees
only), we(indicate the
name and address of the Bank) having its Head Office at(address of the head
Office) (hereinafter referred to as the Bank), at the request of
[Contractor(s)], being the Guarantor under this
Guarantee, do hereby irrevocably and unconditionally undertake to forthwith and
immediately pay to the Employer, an amount not exceeding ₹ without any
demur, immediately on demand from the Employer and without any reservation, protest, and
recourse and without the Employer needing to prove or demonstrate reasons for its such
demand. Any such demand made on the bank, shall be conclusive as regards the amount due
and payable by the Bank under this guarantee. However, our liability under this guarantee
shall be restricted to an amount not exceeding ₹
G
We undertake to pay to the Employer any money so demanded notwithstanding any dispute

We undertake to pay to the Employer any money so demanded notwithstanding any dispute or disputes raised by the Contractor(s) in any suit or proceeding pending before any Court or Tribunal or Arbitrator or any other authority, our liability under this present being absolute and unequivocal. The payment so made by us under this guarantee shall be a valid discharge of our liability for payment hereunder and the Contractor(s) shall have no claim against us for making such payment.

We, further agree that the guarantee herein contained shall remain in full force and effect during the period that would be taken for the performance of the said contract and that it shall continue to be enforceable till all the dues of the Employer under or by virtue of the said Contract have been fully paid and its claims satisfied & the Employer certifies that the terms and conditions of the said Contract have been fully and properly carried out by the said



	stractor(s) or acceptance of the final bill or discharge of this guarantee by the Employer, ichever is earlier. This guarantee shall initially remain in force up to and including 6 and shall be extended from time to time for such period as may be desired by the
	ployer. Unless a demand or claim under this guarantee is made on us in writing on or
	ore the ⁷ , we shall be discharged from all the liability under this
gua	rantee thereafter.
We	,(indicate the name of the Bank)further agree with the Employer that the
Em	ployer shall have the fullest liberty without our consent and without affecting in any
ma	nner our obligations hereunder to vary any of the terms and conditions of the said Contract
or t	o extend time of performance by the said contractor(s) from time to time or to postpone
for	any time or from time to time any of the powers exercisable by the Employer against the
said	d contractor(s) and to forbear or enforce any of the terms and conditions relating to the
said	d Contract and we shall not be relieved from our liability by any reason of any such variation
or e	extension being granted to the said contractor(s) or for any forbearance, act or omission
on	the part of the Employer or any indulgence by the Employer to the said contractor(s) or by
any	such matter or thing whatsoever which under the law relating to sureties would but for
this	s provision have effect of so relieving us.
The	e Bank also agrees that the Employer at its option shall be entitled to enforce this
Gua	arantee against the Bank as a principal debtor, in the first instance without proceeding
_	inst the Contractor and notwithstanding any security or another guarantee that the
	ployer may have in relation to the Contractor's liabilities. This Guarantee shall not be
	ermined or affected by liquidation or winding up, dissolution or change of constitution or
	olvency of the Contractor but shall in all respects and for all purposes be binding and
•	erative until payment of all money payable to the Employer in terms thereof. This
	rrantee will not be discharged due to the change in the constitution of the Bank or the
Cor	ntractor(s).
We	, BANK lastly undertake not to revoke this guarantee during its currency except
wit	h the previous consent of the Employer in writing.
Not	twithstanding anything to the contrary contained hereinabove:
a)	The liability of the Bank under this Guarantee shall not exceed ⁵
b)	This Guarantee shall be valid up to ⁶
c)	Unless the Bank is served a written claim or demand on or before ⁷ all
	rights under this guarantee shall be forfeited and the Bank shall be relieved and
	discharged from all liabilities under this guarantee irrespective of whether or not the
	original bank guarantee is returned to the Bank.



We,	Bank,	have the	power	to issue	this G	iuarantee	under I	aw and	d the
undersigned as a duly	author	rized pers	on has f	ull power	rs to si	gn this Gu	arantee	on beh	alf of
the Bank.									
Place:				Signatur	e & sea	al of the A	uthorize	d Signa	tory
Date:									
For: Name of the Bar	١k								

- 1 Address of employer, Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited
- 2 Address of contractor/ supplier
- 3 Details about the notice of contract
- 4 Contract value
- 5 BG amount in figures and words
- 6 Validity date
- 7 Date of expiry of the claim period

Note

In the case of Bank guarantees submitted by foreign vendors:

- A. From nationalised banks/public sector/ private sector/ foreign banks (BG issued by branches in India) can be accepted subject to the condition that the bank guarantee should be enforceable in the town/city or at nearest branch where the unit is located i.e. Demand can be presented at the branch located on the town/city or at nearest branch where the unit is located.
- B. From foreign banks (where foreign vendors intend to provide BG from the local branch of the vendor country's bank)
 - a. In such a case, Bank Guarantee issued by any of the Consortium banks only will be accepted by BHEL.As such, foreign vendor needs to make necessary arrangements for issuance of Counter-Guarantee by foreign bank in favor of the Indian Banks's (BHEL's consortium bank) branch in India. All charges for issuance of Bank Guarantee/Counter Guarantee should be borne by the foreign vendor.
 - b. In case, foreign vendors intend to provide BG from an overseas branch of our consortium bank (e.g. if a BG is to be issued by SBI Frankfurt), the same is acceptable. However, the procedure at B.1 needs to be followed
 - c. The BG issued may preferably be subject to Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 758 (as amended from time to time.)



ANNEXURE-13 PRICE SCHEDULE (PART-B)

RFP no:		
Subject:		

Name of bidder:

SN	Item description	Unit of	Price inclusive of all
		measurement	taxes & duties
			excluding GST
Α	В	С	D
1	Lump-sum consultancy	INR	In Fig:
	charges for this engagement		In words:

Place & date